

CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

COMMITTEE SUMMONS

C Hanagan Service Director of Democratic Services & Communication Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council The Pavilions Cambrian Park Clydach Vale, CF40 2XX

Meeting Contact: Emma Wilkins - Council Business Unit (<u>emma.wilkins@rctcbc.gov.uk</u>)

YOU ARE SUMMONED to a virtual meeting of YNYSANGHARAD WAR MEMORIAL PARK CABINET SUB COMMITTEE to be held on THURSDAY, 11TH MAY, 2023 at 12.30 PM.

Non Committee Members and Members of the public may request the facility to address the Committee at their meetings on the business listed although facilitation of this request is at the discretion of the Chair. It is kindly asked that such notification is made to Democratic Services by Tuesday, 9 May 2023 on the contact details listed above, including stipulating whether the address will be in Welsh or English.

AGENDA

Page No's

1. DECLARATION OF INTEREST

To receive disclosures of personal interest from Members in accordance with the Code of Conduct

Note:

- 1. Members are requested to identify the item number and subject matter that their interest relates to and signify the nature of the personal interest: and
- 2. Where Members withdraw from a meeting as a consequence of the prejudicial interest they must notify the Chairman when they leave.

2. MINUTES

To receive the minutes of the previous meeting held on the 15th March 2023.

3. POTENTIAL TO CREATE ADDITIONAL EVENT SPACE AT YNYSANGHARAD PARK

To receive the report of the Director of Prosperity & Development seeking approval from Trustees on progressing the potential redevelopment opportunity for an event space within Ynysangharad War Memorial Park, prior to its consideration by Cabinet.

5 - 10

4. URGENT BUSINESS

To consider any items, which the Chairman, by reason of special circumstances, is of the opinion should be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

Service Director of Democratic Services & Communication

Circulation:-

The Chair and Vice-Chair: (County Borough Councillor M Webber and County Borough A Crimmings respectively)

County Borough Councillors: Councillor C Leyshon and Councillor S Powderhill

Mae'r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg / This document is also available in Welsh





RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNCIL YNYSANGHARAD WAR MEMORIAL PARK CABINET SUB COMMITTEE

Minutes of the virtual meeting of the Ynysangharad War Memorial Park Cabinet Sub Committee held on Wednesday, 15 March 2023 at 4.00 pm.

This meeting was recorded, details of which can be accessed here

County Borough Councillors – The following Councillors were present:

Councillor M Webber (Chair)

Councillor A Crimmings Councillor C Leyshon Councillor S Powderhill

Officers in attendance

Mr C Hanagan, Service Director of Democratic Services & Communication Mr S Gale, Director of Prosperity & Development Mr D James, Service Director – Prosperity & Development

1 Declaration of Interest

There were no declarations of interest made pertaining to the agenda.

2 Minutes

It was **RESOLVED** to approve the minutes of the meeting held on 1st May 2019.

3 Potential to create an Additional Event Space at Ynysangharad War Memorial Park

Accompanied by a PowerPoint presentation, the Director of Prosperity and Development presented the report, which sought approval from the Cabinet Committee on progressing the potential redevelopment opportunity for an event space within Ynysangharad War Memorial Park which will support the delivery of major events and to bid for funding from the Visit Wales Brilliant Basics Programme.

Members were informed, that to maximise the space available to host events at Ynysangharad War Memorial Park, the Council appointed consultants to produce a feasibility report on the potential to introduce an Events Space at the large green area adjacent to the bridge access from the Llys Cadwyn development. The Director advised that the area had not been used for some time and offered little amenity value due to the undulating topography designed for golf. It was explained that an existing but under-utilised green space occupied much of the top corner adjacent to the footbridge. The space had the potential to facilitate an events area and community gatherings that could be enjoyed by all.

The Director drew Members' attention to Section 5 of the report, where the event

proposals, including cost and design, were outlined.

The Director advised that in order to support the delivery of the project, the Visit Wales Brilliant Basics Fund was a potential funding source. The purpose of Brilliant Basics was to deliver basic small-scale tourism infrastructure improvements across all of Wales to ensure that visitors have a positive and memorable experience throughout all aspects of their stay.

The Director clarified that the report before Members was to seek their views regarding an Expression of Interest and that should the Council be successful, further reports would be brought forward for Cabinet's consideration.

The Chair thanked the officer for the detailed presentation and recognised that it was the Trustees' duty to ensure the best practical outcomes for Ynysangahard Park and for the residents. The Chair welcomed the proposal and was assured by the Director's presentation, that officers would do their best to ensure a minimal number of trees would be disrupted, should it be agreed. The Chair spoke of the Council's ambition to bring larger events to Pontypridd and felt that the space would be extremely beneficial.

The Cabinet Member for Environment and Leisure was in favour of the repurposing of the land and of officers' bid for funding. The Cabinet Member commented that the area would not only bring external events to the area but would be beneficial for local groups and schools for smaller events.

The Cabinet Member for Climate Change and Corporate Services was also in support of the proposal and reiterated earlier comments. The Cabinet Member noted the size of the space and that it was currently underutilised.

The Chair thanked the Director for the report and looked forward to future updates.

The Sub-Committee **RESOLVED**:

1. To consider the concept design proposal presented in the report and to instruct officers to proceed with its further development and bid for funding from the Visit Wales Brilliant Basics Programme.

This meeting closed at 4.15 pm

Councillor M Webber Chair.

Mae'r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg / This document is also available in Welsh



RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

YNYSANGHARAD WAR MEMORIAL PARK CABINET COMMITTEE

11th MAY 2023

POTENTIAL TO CREATE AN ADDITIONAL EVENT SPACE AT YNYSANGHARAD WAR MEMORIAL PARK

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF PROSPERITY & DEVELOPMENT

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek Trustees comments and approval on progressing the potential redevelopment opportunity for an event space within Ynysangharad War Memorial Park which will support the delivery of major events prior to consideration by the Cabinet.

2. **RECOMMENDATIONS**

It is recommended that Trustees:

- 2.1 Consider and comment on the concept design proposal presented in the report;
- 2.2 Provide feedback to Cabinet at its meeting on the 15th May in respect of the proposal and submission of a formal application for funding.

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 To ensure that the Council can make the best possible use of Ynysangharad War Memorial Park for major events and provide local communities with useable green spaces and take advantage of the funding opportunity provided by the Brilliant Basics Programme.

4. BACKGROUND

4.1 In order to consider ways to maximise the space available to host events at Ynysangharad War Memorial Park, a feasibility report on the potential to introduce an Events Space at the large green area adjacent to the bridge access from the Llys Cadwyn development has been produced.

- 4.2 The area of the park under consideration, was previously the site of a pitch-n-putt golf course and was later used for footgolf. It has not been formally used for some time and currently offers little amenity value due to the undulating topography designed for golf.
- 4.3 The space has the potential to facilitate an events area and community gatherings that can be enjoyed by all whilst retaining as much useable green space as possible.



- 4.4 The option described in section 5 below was considered by Trustees of this Committee on the <u>15th March 2023</u>.
- 4.5 Subsequently, Visit Wales have invited the Council to submit a formal application for financial support for the project to their Brilliant Basics Fund. The objectives of the fund are to:

• Invest in basic infrastructure that benefits both communities and visitors in strategically important tourism locations.

• Develop high quality infrastructure projects that support the wider tourism offer in destinations giving visitors a memorable experience throughout their stay.

• Improve access to facilities and project an inclusive view of Wales.

• Support basic facilities to remain open all year and cater for visitors well into the evening.

• Contribute to strategically important tourism products e.g. The Wales Coast Path.

• Encourage clean, green destinations for example through sustainable infrastructure improvements.

4.6 It is considered that the event space proposals outlined below meet all the objectives of the fund.

5. EVENT SPACE PROPOSALS

- 5.1 A feasibility report and a concept design has been developed for the event space. Establishing this space is essential to expand the existing facilities to host large events within the park and provide an additional option to avoid disrupting the regular users of the park when events take place.
- 5.2 The proposal is for the upper plateau of the former Pitch and Putt course to be flattened out with a soft landscaping solution to generally make a more useable green space and give the ability for the space to be used for events and other

similar activities. It is also proposed that new, small but necessary footways and seating areas be introduced to improve accessibility and the amenity of the park.

5.3 The computer generated images below give an idea of how the space would look and it should be noted that every effort has been made to maintain the maximum amount of green space. Further work will be undertaken as part of the detailed design stage to ensure that the loss of any trees is also minimised. The current desgin thinking is that any trees lost (if any) would be those smaller trees that form part of the golf course and not any of the mature trees that flank the main footways. A thorough assessment of any tree affected will form part of the detailed design process and proposals for additional tree planting will also be developed as part of the design.



6. PROJECT TIMESCALES AND DELIVERY IMPLICATIONS

- 6.1 The proposed concept design outlined above has the potential to be completed by the summer season of 2024. However, the design and tendering process must be initiated by late summer 2023 to ensure a timely start on-site in the autumn of 2023. This will align with appropriate planting seasons, enabling optimal growing conditions before use.
- 6.2 In addition, as it is proposed that the upper plateau will be levelled and therefore re-seeded to allow it to be used as a temporary event space this will require a settling-in period before it can be used.
- 6.3 Once the detailed design is complete an assessment can be undertaken around what planning and related consents, if any, are necessary. It is also proposed to engage with the public and key stakeholders once detailed design proposals become available.

7. FUNDING OPPORTUNITIES

- 7.1 To support the delivery of this project, the Visit Wales Brilliant Basics Fund is a potential funding source. The purpose of Brilliant Basics is to deliver basic small-scale tourism infrastructure improvements across all of Wales to ensure that visitors have a positive and memorable experience throughout all aspects of their stay.
- 7.2 It is currently estimated that proposed works will cost around £249k. The Brilliant Basics Fund is capital-only, and grants are available up to a maximum of £300,000 with a maximum intervention rate of 80%. The remaining 20% would be met from existing regeneration investment budgets. The 2023/24 round of funding is currently open with a deadline for the submission of formal applications being 1st June 2023.

8. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS / SOCIO-ECONOMIC DUTY

8.1 An Equality Impact Assessment will be considered as part of the project design and development should it proceed.

9. WELSH LANGUAGE IMPLICATIONS

9.1 The Welsh Language implications will be considered as part of the project design and delivery should it proceed.

10. CONSULTATION / INVOLVEMENT

10.1 There is no requirements for consultation in respect of this report. Should the project proceed to detailed design and development, it is proposed to engage with the public and key stakeholders on the basis of the detailed design proposals.

11. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

11.1 A successful single application to the Visit Wales Brilliant Basics Fund would enable the design and delivery of the concept design, along with a match funding contribution from RCT CBC's own resources as set out in Paragraph 7 of the report.

12. LEGISLATION CONSIDERED

12.1 These will be considered in detail as part of the project design and development process should it proceed.

13. LINKS TO THE CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT.

- 13.1 The regeneration project detailed in the report will collectively boost the local economy and provide job opportunities for local people.
- 13.2 The development will directly contribute to the goals of the Well Being of Future Generations Act. In particular, the economic and environmental well-being of Wales, supporting the delivery of a prosperous Wales, a more resilient Wales, and a Wales of cohesive communities.

14. CONCLUSION

14.1 This report provides information seeking comments and approval from Trustees on whether to progress the concept design option for the potential redevelopment opportunity in Ynysangharad Park and to seek funding from the Brilliant Basics Fund to support the project design and delivery, prior to Cabinet consideration. This page is intentionally left blank